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Action PAC (Directly benefits Greg’s Governor campaign).”1 At the end of the invitation, 
there was a disclosure noting, “Paid for by: Greg for Montana PO Box 877, Helena, MT, 59624 
(R).”2 

I. Legal Analysis  

We have evidence of at least three violations of state law here.  

First, there is evidence Greg for Montana impermissibly controls Montana First Action. Under 
Montana election law, an independent committee cannot be controlled by a candidate.3 An 
“independent committee” is “a political committee organized for the primary purpose of 
receiving contributions and making expenditures that is not controlled either directly or 
indirectly by a candidate and that does not coordinate with a candidate in conjunction with the 
making of expenditures except pursuant to the limits set forth in 13-37-216(1).”4 While an 
independent committee can donate up to $710 to a candidate for governor for each election,5 the 
state will “take[] away any independent committee status for a committee in which the candidate 
exercises a degree of control[.]”6 

Montana First Action is a registered “independent committee.” Gianforte’s campaign expressly 
instructed his supporters to contribute to Montana First Action, stating a contribution “[d]irectly 
benefits Greg’s Governor campaign.” It is hard to read such a statement without drawing the 
conclusion that Greg Gianforte directly, or at the very least indirectly, controls Montana First 
Action, in violation of state law.  

Second, Greg for Montana is using Montana First Action to circumvent the state’s contribution 
limits. Individuals can donate no more than $710 per election to a gubernatorial candidate in 
Montana.7 By directing contributors to donate to Montana First Action if they are “maxed” to 
Greg for Montana, so that money can benefit his campaign, the campaign is intentionally 
circumventing Montana’s contribution limit and directing donors to violate state law.   

Third, Greg for Montana is impermissibly coordinating with Montana First Action. Montana law 
prohibits “coordinated expenditure[s],” such as a person spending “in cooperation with, in 
consultation with, under the control of, or at the direction of, in concert with, at the request or 
suggestion of, or with the express prior consent of a candidate or an agent of the candidate.”8 
Greg for Montana’s assurance that funds spent by Montana First Action will “[d]irectly benefit[] 
Greg’s Governor campaign,” appears to be a prohibited “request” under Mont. Admin. R. 
44.11.602(1). As a result of this prohibited coordination, Greg for Montana is potentially 
benefitting from prohibited corporate contributions. Montana law is explicit that a corporation  

 
1 Id. (emphasis added). 
2 Id. 
3 Mont. Code Ann. § 13-1-101. 
4 Id. (emphasis added). 
5 Id. § 13-37-216(1)(a)(i); Mont. Admin. R. 44.11.227(1)(a). 
6 Wang Advisory Opinion, COPP 2015-AO-001, page 5 (available at 
https://politicalpractices.mt.gov/Portals/144/5campaignfinance/WangAdvisoryOpinion.pdf). 
7 Mont. Admin. R. 44.11.227(1)(a). 
8 See Mont. Admin. R. 44.11.602(1) (emphasis added). 
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Cook, Scott

From: Sandi Luckey <sandi@montanademocrats.org>
Sent: Monday, August 3, 2020 3:14 PM
To: Cook, Scott
Subject: [EXTERNAL] supplement to complaint
Attachments: COPP Suppl Compl GG MFA (Final).docx; Attachment B, Gianforte Mailer (1).pdf; Attachment A, 

Gianforte Mailer (1).pdf

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Scott; 
 
Please see the attached supplement to my complaint along with Attachments. If this needs to be notarized and hand 
delivered please let me know.  
 
Thanks! 
 
 
‐‐  
Sandi Luckey 
Executive Director, Montana Democratic Party 
406‐442‐9520 
 
 
Follow Montana Democrats on Twitter, on Facebook, and please consider signing up for regular donations through the 
MDP Monthly Donor Program! 
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August 2, 2020 

Commissioner Jeff Mangan 
Commissioner of Political Practices 
1209 Eighth Avenue 
P.O. BOX 202401 
Helena, MT 59620-2401 
cpphelp@mt.gov  
 

RE: COPP-2020-CFP-032A–032B — Additional Evidence  

Dear Commissioner Mangan: 

On July 22, 2020, we submitted a complaint with your office, seeking an immediate 
investigation into Greg for Montana, a campaign committee, and Montana First Action, a super 
PAC (the “Original Complaint”). The Original Complaint detailed at least three violations of 
state law: (1) Greg for Montana impermissibly controlling Montana First Action, (2) Greg for 
Montana using Montana First Action to circumvent the state’s contribution limits, and (3) Greg 
for Montana impermissibly coordinating with Montana First Action, leading to a possible 
violation of the ban on corporate contributions to candidates. Additional evidence has come to 
light further demonstrating violations of the law. We submit this supplemental complaint 
to request the Commissioner on Political Practices (“COPP”) consider this additional 
evidence in its investigation and take swift remedial action against both entities 
(“Supplemental Complaint”).    

The Supplemental Complaint incorporates all the facts set forth in the Original Complaint. 
Additionally, on July 1, 2020, Greg for Montana sent an email invitation for a “Governor 
Campaign Lunch.”1 The invitation noted that if contributors had “maxed, contributions can be 
made to Montana First Action PAC (Directly benefits Greg’s Governor campaign).”2  

Greg for Montana’s email invitation was not the only time the campaign directed donors to 
contribute to Montana First Action PAC. Greg for Montana also sent a postcard inviting 
supporters to a “Governor Campaign Reception” to take place on August 9, 2020.3 Again, the 
invitation noted the maximum contribution per person was $1,420.4 Yet again, the invitation 
stated, “[i]f maxed, contributions can be made to Montana First Action PAC (Directly benefits 
Greg’s Governor campaign).5  

 
1 Attachment A, E-mail from info@gregformontana.com, “You're Invited! Please Join Greg Gianforte & Kristen 
Juras In Helena, Montana!” (July 1, 2020).  
2 Id.  
3 Attachment B, Postcard Invitation to “Governor Campaign Reception, Sunday, August 9th.” (last accessed July 28, 
2020).  
4 Id.  
5 Id. (emphasis added).  

mailto:cpphelp@mt.gov
mailto:info@gregformontana.com
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According to news sources, Gianforte’s campaign manager, Jake Eaton, called the Original 
Complaint a “frivolous complaint with absolutely no merit.”6 Mr. Eaton, however, seems to be 
more than just Greg for Montana’s campaign manager. Indeed, Mr. Eaton appears to be closely 
connected to Montana First PAC.  

Montana First Action PAC maintains a publicly-available website at MontanaFirstAction.com.7 
That website shares an “Internet Protocol address” or “IP address” with websites that both 
support Greg Gianforte’s campaign and are paid for by Greg for Montana.8 An IP address is a 
unique set of numbers; each computer that is connected to the internet is assigned an IP address.9 
Specifically, Montana First Action shares an IP address – 216.70.80.206 – with 
MontanaBusinessPlan.com, which promotes Gianforte’s business plan and is paid for by Greg 
for Montana.10 Montana First Action also shares an IP address with MikeCooney1976.com, a 
website dedicated to attacking Lieutenant Governor Mike Cooney that is paid for by Greg for 
Montana.11 

It may just seem like a coincidence Montana First Action’s website shares an IP address with 
websites associated with Greg for Montana. But, go a layer deeper, and it is clear there is no 
coincidence. MontanaFirstAction.com, MontanaBusinessPlan.com, and MikeCooney1976.com 
are all registered to the same organization: Ultra Graphics.12 The owner of Ultra Graphics? Jake 
Eaton.13 

These internet records are further proof of Greg for Montana and Montana First Action 
intentionally flouting the state’s campaign finance law. Since Mr. Eaton’s company is the 
registrant of Montana First Action’s website, it is exceedingly likely that Greg for Montana 
controls Montana First Action in direct violation of state law.14 Further, by controlling Montana 
First Action, Greg for Montana appears to be using the independent committee to circumvent the 
state’s contribution limits.15 Finally, since Montana First Action seems to be “under the control 

 
6 Iris Samuels, Dems Accused Gianforte of Coordinating with PAC, ASSOCIATED PRESS (July 27, 2020), 
https://apnews.com/3770e66aac20aa2772c137377b1f574d.  
7 See Montana First Action (last accessed July 28, 2020), available at http://montanafirstaction.com/.  
8 DNSlytics, Reverse IP Lookup (last accessed July 28, 2020), available at https://dnslytics.com/reverse-
ip/216.70.80.206.  
9 See Beginner’s Guide to Internet Protocol Addresses, Internet Corporation for Assigned Names and Numbers 
(ICANN) (2011), available at https://www.icann.org/en/system/files/files/ip-addresses-beginners-guide-04mar11-
en.pdf.  
10 DNSlytics, Reverse IP Lookup (last accessed July 28, 2020), available at https://dnslytics.com/reverse-
ip/216.70.80.206; Montana Business Plan (last accessed July 28, 2020), available at 
https://montanabusinessplan.com/.  
11 DNSlytics, Reverse IP Lookup (last accessed July 28, 2020), available at https://dnslytics.com/reverse-
ip/216.70.80.206; Mike Cooney 1976 (last accessed July 28, 2020), available at https://mikecooney1976.com/.  
12 DNSlytics, Reverse IP Lookup (last accessed July 28, 2020), available at https://dnslytics.com/reverse-
ip/216.70.80.206. 
13 Ultra Graphics, Meet the Ultra Graphics Team, (last accessed July 28, 2020), available at 
https://ultragraphicsmt.com/about-us/staff/.  
14 See Mont. Code Ann. § 13-1-101. 
15 See Mont. Admin. R. 44.11.227(1)(a). 

https://apnews.com/3770e66aac20aa2772c137377b1f574d
http://montanafirstaction.com/
https://dnslytics.com/reverse-ip/216.70.80.206
https://dnslytics.com/reverse-ip/216.70.80.206
https://www.icann.org/en/system/files/files/ip-addresses-beginners-guide-04mar11-en.pdf
https://www.icann.org/en/system/files/files/ip-addresses-beginners-guide-04mar11-en.pdf
https://dnslytics.com/reverse-ip/216.70.80.206
https://dnslytics.com/reverse-ip/216.70.80.206
https://montanabusinessplan.com/
https://dnslytics.com/reverse-ip/216.70.80.206
https://dnslytics.com/reverse-ip/216.70.80.206
https://mikecooney1976.com/
https://dnslytics.com/reverse-ip/216.70.80.206
https://dnslytics.com/reverse-ip/216.70.80.206
https://ultragraphicsmt.com/about-us/staff/
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of” Greg for Montana, both entities are engaging in prohibited coordination, and possibly 
violating the state’s ban on corporate contributions.16  

Additionally, the postcard invitation plainly instructs Greg for Montana’s contributors to donate 
to Montana First Action PAC, stating contributions will “[d]irectly” benefit Gianforte’s 
campaign. Greg for Montana and Montana First Action cannot claim the first email invitation 
was a mistake. Instead, there is now a pattern of the two entities blatantly disregarding state law.  

As stated in the Original Complaint, we request an immediate investigation into Greg for 
Montana and Montana First Action for these clear violations. Montana First Action should not 
only be stripped of its independent status, it should be prohibited from engaging in any future 
support of Greg Gianforte. Greg for Montana should also be required to turn over any corporate 
contributions received through Montana First Action. COPP should make clear that this type of 
activity is plainly inconsistent with Montana law. 

 

Sincerely, 

Sandi Luckey  
Executive Director 
Montana Democratic Party 
 

 

 

 
16 See Mont. Admin. R. 44.11.602(1). 
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